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To The Members of BLUE STAR ENGINEERING & ELECTRONICS LIMITED 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Blue Star Engineering & 
Electronics Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 3pt March 
2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on 
that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act") i_n the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act , (" Ind AS") 
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows 
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Aud it ing (" SAs") specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibil ities under 
those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India ("!CAI") together with the eth ical requirements that are relevant to our audi t of the 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and 
we have fulfilled our other eth ical responsibil ities in accordance with these requ irements 
and the !CAi's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financia l 
statements . 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

• The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other informati on. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Directors report (herein referred 
to as "other information") but does not include the financial statements and our 
au.ditor's report thereon. 

• Our opin ion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon . 

• In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibil ity is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obta ined during 
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

• If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard . 

,\_ ~ 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other 
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified under 
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors is responsible 
for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Company's Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's 
financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free .from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and sign ificant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal financial controls that we identify during our audit. 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that : 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for not 
complying with the requirement of audit trail as stated in (i)(vi) below. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes 
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of 
account. 
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the I nd AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 3pt March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f) The modification/s relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters 
connected therewith, is/are as stated in paragraph (b) above. 

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A". Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year 
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its financia l statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign 
entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. 
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge 
and belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any 
person or entity, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to 
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 
sub-clause (i) and (i i) of Rule ll(e), as provided under (a) and (b) 
above, contain any material misstatement. 

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and 
has not proposed final dividend for the year. 

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has 
used accounting software for ma inta ining its books of account for the year 
ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit 
log) fac ility and the same has operated t~roughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail was not 
enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes. 

Further, during the course of ou r audit, we did not come across any 
instance of audit trai l feature be ing tampered with, in respect of accounting 
software for wh ich the audit trail feature was operating. 

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is 
appl icable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Compan ies 
(Audit and Aud itors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of aud it trail as per the 
statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the 
financia l year ended March 31, 2024. 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by 
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure 
B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : April 30, 2024 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

~ 
' ' 

Ketan Vora 
Partner 

Membership No. 100459 
UDIN: 24100459BKFASW5946 
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

{Referred to in paragraph l{g) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' section of our report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 
under Clause {i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"the 
Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 
Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited ("the Company") as at March 31, 2024 in 
conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements based on criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements 

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with 
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial 
statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on criteria 
for internal financial control with reference to financial statements established by the 
respective Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India . 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: April 30, 2024 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

Ketan Vora 
Partner 

Membership No. 100459 
UDIN: 24100459BKFASW5946 



Deloitte 
Haskins & Sells LLP 

ANNEXURE " B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirement' section of our report of even date} 

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and 
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the 
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that: 

(i)(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in­
progress and investment properties. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible 
assets. 

(i)(b) The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment, capital 
work-in-progress, investment properties, so to cover al l the items once every 3 years 
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain assets were due for verification 
during the year and were physically verified by the management during the year. 
According to t he information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification. 

(i)(c) Based on our examination of t he registered title deed and other records provided to 
us, we report that, the title deeds of all the immovable properties, ( other than immovable 
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed 
in favour of the Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in (property, plant 
and equipment, capital work-in progress and investment property) are held in the name 
of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 

(i)(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets during the year. 

(i)(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the 
Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 

(ii)(a) The inventories except for (goods-in-transit), were physically verified during the 
year by the Management at reasonable intervals . In our opinion and based on information 
and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the 
Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of 
its operations. In respect of goods in transit, the goods have been received subsequent to 
the year end. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of 
inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories, when compared with 
the books of account. 

(ii)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been 
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time 
during the year, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly returns or 
statements comprising (stock, creditors, book debt statements, statements on ageing 
analysis of the debtors and other stipulated financial information) fi led by the Company 
with such banks are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of 
the respective quarters. The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facil ity 
from financial institutions. 
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(iii) The Company has granted unsecured loans, to companies during the year, in respect 
of which: 

(iii)(a) The Company has provided unsecured loans to companies and other parties, during 
the year and details of which are given below: 

Amount (Rs In lakhs) 
Particular Loans 
A. Aaareaate amount aranted / orovided durina the vear: 
- Parent Comoanv 8 500 
- Fellow Subsidiarv 3 500 
- Others (Emolovees) 5.50 
B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above 
cases: 
- Parent Company 8 500 
- Fellow Subsidiary 3,500 
- Others (Employees) 62.55 

The Company has not provided any guarantee or security to any other entity during the 
year. 

(iii) (b) In our opinion, the terms and conditions of the grant of all the above-mentioned 
loans provided, during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the 
Company's interest. 

(iii) (c) In respect of loans granted the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of 
interest has been stipulated and the repayments of principa l amounts and receipts of 
interest are regular as per stipulation. 

(iii)(d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit 
procedures performed, in respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue 
amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date. 

(iii)(e) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been 
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given 
to the same parties. 

(iii)(f) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit 
procedures performed, the Company has not granted any loans either repayable on 
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, 
reporting under clause (iii)(f) is not applicable. 

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and 
securities provided, as applicable. 

(v)The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be 
deposits. Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable. 

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified for the activities of the 
Company by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(vii)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory 
dues: 
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Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees' 
State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material statutory dues 
applicable to the Company have generally been regularly deposited by it with the 
appropriate authorities. 

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident 
Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material 
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable. 

(vii) (b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been 
deposited as on March 31, 2024 on account of disputes are given below: 

Name of Nature of Amount Amount Period to Forum where 
the Statute the Dues involved Paid which the Dispute is 

(Rs. In (Rs. In Amount Pending 
lakhs) lakhs) Relates 

Maharashtra Value Added 122.16 99.64 FY 2013-14 Appellate 
Value Added Taxes, Tribunal 
Tax, 2022 Interest, and 

Penalty on 
the same 

GST Law, GST Tax, APPELLATE 
Delhi Interest 3.53 0.16 2017-18 JOINT 

Penalty on COMMISSIONER 
the same OF STATE TAX 

GST Law, GST Tax, 1.42 0.05 2017-18 Appel late 
Kerala Interest Authority 

Penalty on 
the same 

GST Law, GST Tax, 18.34 1.21 2020-21 Appellate 
Gujrat Interest Authority 

Penalty on 
the same 

(vii i) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were 
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961 (43 of 1961) during the year. 

( ix)(a) In our opinion, the company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other 
borrowings, or in payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year. 

(ix)(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority. 

(ix)(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no 
unutilised term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(c) 
of the Order is not applicable. 

(ix)(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised 
on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term 
purposes by the Company. 

(ix)(e) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the 
year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 
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(ix)(f) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the 
year and hence reporting on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

(x)(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) 
of the Order is not applicable. 

(x) (b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence 
reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xi)(a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on 
the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(xi)(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of 
the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under ru le 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto 
the date of this report. 

(xi)(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints 
received by the Company during the year and upto the date of this report. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in terms of Rule 4 of the 
Companies (Appointment and qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 read with Rule 6 of 
the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, provisions of Section 177 
of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 
In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with 188 of the Companies Act, where 
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party 
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the 
applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate 
with the size and the nature of its business. 

(xiv) (b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the 
year and covering the period upto March 31, 2024. 

(xv) In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions 
of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi)(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order 
is not applicable. 

(xvi) (d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting 
under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our 
audit and the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the 
year. 
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(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of real ization of 
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the 
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans 
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has 
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as 
on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its 
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period 
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance 
as to the future viabi lity of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on 
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

(xx) (a) The Company has fully spent the required amounts towards Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) and there is no unspent CSR amount for the current financial year 
requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special 
account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. 
Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: April 30, 2024 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018) 

Ef = ora 
Partner 

Membership No. 100459 
UDIN: 24100459BKFASW5946 



Blue Star Engineering & Electron ics Limited 
CIN No : U70200MH201 OPLC204612 
Balance Sheet as at March 31 , 2024 

Particulars 

A ASSETS 
1. Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 
(b) Investment Properties 
(c) Intangible Assets 
(d) Financial assets 

-Loans 
(e) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 
(f) Other non-current assets 

Total Non-Current Assets 

2. Current assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 
CTi) Trade Receivables 
(iii) Cash and cash Equivalems 
(iv) Loans 
(v) Other Financial Assets 

(c) Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
1. Equity 

(a) Equity Share Capital 
(b) Other Equity 

Total Equity 

2. Non-Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial liabilities 

-Other financial liabilities 
(b) Provisions 
(c) Other non-current liabilities 

Total Non-Current liabilities 

3. Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Trade Payables 
e. Total outstanding dues or Micro Enterprises and Small 

Enterprises 
b. Total outstanding dues or Creditors other than Micro 

Enterprises and Small Enterprises 
(b) Other Current Liabili ties 
(c) Provisions 
{d) Current tax liabilil ies (Net) 

Total 4 Current liabilities 

Total l iabi lit ies 

TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Summary of material accounting policies 

Notes As at 

31st March, 2024 
f Lakhs 

3(a) 1,489.95 
3(b) 3,41 5.63 
3 (c) 36.53 

4(a) 24.92 
15 364.46 
9 2,180.67 

7,512.16 

5 4,942.36 

6 3,002. 12 
7 8,723.05 
0 5,407.69 

4(3) 12,037.63 
4(b) 11 4.45 

9 4,259.94 

38,567.24 

46,079.40 

10(a) 1,058.50 
10(b) 25,7 13.72 

26,772.22 

12 257.97 
14 
13 1,199.33 

1,457.30 

11 390.04 

11 7,833.74 

13 6,631.76 
14 1,122.58 
15 1,863.76 

17,849.88 

19,307.18 

46,079.40 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 1 lo 42 

In terms of our report anached 
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

~ 
Ketan ~ ;a 
Partner 
Membership No: 100459 

Place : Mumbai 
Oate: April 30, 2024 

Chairman 
Din: 01571278 

\~ 
~mKatliath 

CEO & Director 
Din: 07249861 

Place : Mumbai 
Dale: April 23, 2024 

As at 

31st March, 2023 
, Lakhs 

1,331 .80 
3,543.62 

15.43 

29.89 
357.85 

1,361.65 

6,640.24 

3,939.77 

1,013.33 
8,280.30 
2,727.82 

15,543.45 
127.77 

5,373.65 

37,006.09 

43,646.33 

1,058.50 
21,290.36 
22,348.86 

255.14 
3.30 

1,842.82 

2,101.26 

1.51 

9,190.41 

7,781.47 
965.80 

1,257.02 

19,196.21 

21 ,297.47 

43,646.33 

Nlkh i l Sohoni 
Director 
Din: 06852639 

Yogesh Joshi 
CFO & Company 

Secretary 

I 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No : U70200MH2010PLC204612 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Particulars 

Revenue from operations 
Other Income 
Total Income (I) 

Expenses 
Cost of material consumed and Project cost 
Purchase of Stock-in-trade 
Changes in Inventories of stock-in-trade 
Employee benefits expense 
Depreciation and amortization expenses 
Finance costs 
Other expenses 

Total Expenses (If) 

Profit before tax (I) • (II) 

Tax Expense 
i) Current tax 
ii) Deferred tax 

Total tax expense (Ill) 

Profit after tax (IV) 

Other comprehensive Income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in 
susequent periods 
Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans 
Income tax effect 
Other comprehensive (loss)/ income (V) 

Total comprehensive Income (IV+V) 
Earnings per equity share of Rs. 2 each 
Basic ( In Rs) 
Diluted ( in Rs) 

Summary of material accounting pol icies 
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements. 

In terms of our report attached 
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Ketan Vora 
Partner 
Membership No: 100459 

Place : Mumbai 

Date: April 30, 2024 

Notes 

16 
17 

18 
18 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 

15 
15 

23 

2 
1 to 42 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 
f Lakhs ' Lakhs 

38,114.26 34,992.23 
1,488.51 1,057.02 

39,602.77 36,049.25 

3. 148.97 3,711.26 
23,907.22 22,928.52 
(1 ,002.59) (2, 195.07} 
3,913.61 3,416.28 

245.42 312.24 
76.45 82.75 

3,040.57 2,303.87 

33,329.65 30,559.85 

6,273.12 5,489.40 

1,644.71 1,476.37 
(6.61) (14 .79) 

1,638.1 0 1,461.58 

4,635.02 4,027.82 

(8.91) 2.83 
2.25 (0.71) 

(6.66) 2.12 

4,628.36 4,029.94 

8.76 7.6 1 
8.76 7.61 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

VirS Advanl 
Chairman 
Din: 01571278 

Nikhil Sohoni 
Director 
Din: 06852639 

~~~KalHalh Yogesh Joshi 
CFO & Company 
Secretary 

CEO & Director 
Din: 07249861 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: April 23, 2024 
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• Blue Star Engineering & El ectronics Limited 
CIN No : U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Statement Of Cash Flows For The Year Ended March 31 , 2024 

Parti culars 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Profit before tax 

Adjustments for : 

Depreciation and amortization expenses 
Loss/(profil) on sale of property, plant and equipment other than freehold land 
Bad debts written off and provision for doubtful debts 
Provision for doubtful debts and advances and espected credit loss (net) 
Net unrealised foreign exchange (gain)noss 
Net gain on sale of investments in mutual fund 
Provisions and liabilities written back 
Finance costs 
Interest Income 

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 
Movements in working capital : 

lncrease/(decrease) in trade payables 
lncrease/{decrease) in provisions 
lncrease/(decrease) in other liabilities 
(lncrease)/decrease in trade receivables 
(lncrease)/decrease in inventories 
(lncrease)/decrease in other assets/financial assets 
(lncrease)/decrease in other assets 

Cash generated from operations 
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) 
Net cash fl ows generated from operating activiti es (A) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Payment towards purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment 
Payment towards Investment in mutual fund 
Proceeds from redemption of mutual fund 
Interest Received 
Inter corporate deposit repaid 
Inter corporate deposit given 
Net cash flow generated from investing activities (B) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Finance cost paid 
Net cash flow used in financing activities (C) 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+ B + C) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Effects of exchange differences on restatement of foreign currency cash and cash 
equivalents 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE EN O OF THE YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISES OF 

- In current accounts 
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 
- Cash on hand 

TOTAL CASH ANO CASH EQUIVALENTS fRefer note 8) 

Year ended Year ended 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

' Lakhs ' Lakhs 

6,273.12 5,489.40 

6,273.12 5,489.40 

245.42 312.24 
2.10 1.48 

100.57 . 
(14.31) 91.58 

(8.08) (33.84) 
(68.19) (18.25) 

(186.83) (122.40) 
76.45 82.75 

(1 ,219.91) (881.101 
5,200.34 4,921 .86 

(1,063.72) 2,917.16 
144.58 287.77 

(1 ,790.37) 811 .86 
(435.51) (3,222.24) 

(1 ,002.59) (2,195.06) 
24.11 (33.72) 

205.24 (1 ,241.751 
1,282.08 2,245.88 

(1 ,035.74) (942.79) 
246.34 1,303.09 

(209.34) (799.49) 
(14,660.00) (5,000.00) 
12,739.41 4,004.92 

1,219.91 881.10 
15,500.00 16,000.00 

(12,000.00) (15,500.00) 
2, 589.98 (413.47) 

(76.45) (82.75) 
(76.45) (82.75) 

2,759.87 806.87 
2,708.31 1,870.51 

19.51 50.44 

5,487.69 2,727.82 

1,200.68 2,711.31 
4,279.94 10.61 

7.07 5.90 

5,487.69 2,727.82 

Nole : The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS-7 on the Statement of Cash Flow as 
notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended. 

Summary of material accounting policies 

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial statements 

In terms of our report attached 
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Ketan Vora 
Partner 
Membership No: 100459 

Place : Mumbai 
Dale: April 30. 2024 

2 

1 to42 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

o/~ \ fi,_9.----~~ 
Vir S Advani 
Chairman 
Din: 01571278 

\~ 
~~m Kalliath 

CEO & Director 
Qin: 07249861 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: April 23, 2024 

Nikhil Sohoni 
Director 
Din: 06852639 

Yogesh Joshi 
CFO & Company 

Secretary 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024 

(A) Equity Share Capital 

For the year ended March 31 2024 
' 

Balance as at April 1, 2023 Changes in Equity Share Capital during 
the year 

1 058.50 -
For the vear ended March 31 2023 

' 

Balance as at April 1, 2022 
Changes in Equity Share Capital during 

the year 

1 058.50 -

(B) Other Equity 

For the vear ended March 31 2024 
Reserves & Surplus 

Particulars Share Premium 
(refer note 10(bl) 

Capital Reserves 

For the vear ended March 31, 2024 

As at Aoril 1 2023 2 088.87 7 762.48 

Adiustment durina the vear /refer note :351 (205.00) 

Profit for the vear 

Other Comorehensive Income - -
As at March 31 , 2024 1,883.87 7,762.48 

For the vear ended March 31 2023 
Reserves & Surplus 

Particulars Share Premium 
(refer note 10(bl) Capital Reserves 

As at Aoril 1 2022 2 088.87 7 762.48 
Profit for the vear - -
Other Comorehensive loss - -
As at March 31, 2023 2,088.87 7,762.48 

Summary of material accounting policies 2 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 1 to 42 

Balance as at 
March 31, 2024 

1 058.50 

Balance as at 
March 31 , 2023 

1 058.50 

t Lakhs 

Total Other 
Retained Earning Equity 

11 439.01 21 290.36 

(205.00) 

4 635.02 4 635.02 

(6.66) (6.66) 

16,067.36 25,713.72 

Total Other 
Retained Earning Equity 

7 409.07 17 260.42 

4 027.82 4 027.82 

2.12 2.12 
11,439.01 21,290.36 

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Ketan Vora 
Partner 
Membership No: 100459 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: April 30, 2024 

Vir S Advani 

Chairman 
Din: 01571278 

\Jw 
~cK.m Kalliath 

CEO & Director 
Din: 07249861 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: April 23. 2024 

Nikhil Sohonl 
Director 

Din: 06852639 

' 

~~ 
Yogesh Joshi 

CFO & Company Secretary 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

CIN No : U70200MH201 OPLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

Corporate information 

Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited ("the Company") is a public company incorporated in the year 2010 (with effect from 27th February 2015, the 

name of the Company has changed from Blue Star Electro Mechanical Limited to Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited). The registered office of the 

company is located at Kasturi Buildings, Jamshedji Tata Road, Mohan T Advani Chowk, Mumbai - 400020 

The Company is into distribution and maintenance of imported professional electronics and industrial systems and in the business of providing Plumbing & 

Fire Fighting Contracting Services, providing engineering services in the field of refrigerators and air conditioning, heating and ventilation and also renting of 

properties. 
The financial statements of the Company have been approved by its Board of Directors on 23rd April, 2024 

1A Statement of compliance 

"The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained 
in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value 

is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderty transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting standards ('Ind AS'), including the rules notified under 
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, (as amended from time to time) and Presentation and disclosure requirements of Division II of Schedule 
Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS Compliant Schedule Ill) as amended from time to time. 

The financial statements are presented in and all values are rounded to the nearest crores, except when otherwise indicated." 

2 Summary Material Accounting Policies 

(a) Basis of preparation and presentation 

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained in 

the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is 

the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderty transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

(b) Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires the management of the 
Company to make estimates and judgements that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent assets and liabilities 

and the reported amounts of income and expense for the periods presented . 
Estimates and the undertying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the periods in which the 
estimates are revised and in future periods affected. 
Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements are disclosed in Note 24. 

(c) Revenue recognition 
Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that 

performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable 

consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the Group as part of the contract. 

i. Revenue from sale of traded goods: 
Revenue from sale of t raded goods is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer. Indicators that control has been transferred 
include, the establishment of the Company's present right to receive payment for the goods sold, transfer of legal title to the customer, transfer of physical 
possession to the customer, transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership in the goods to the customer, and the acceptance of the goods by the 

customer. 

ii. Revenue from construction contracts: 
Contract revenues are recognised based on the stage of completion of the contract activity. Revenue is measured based on the proportion of contract costs 

incurred for satisfying the performance obligation to the total estimated contract costs, there being a direct relationship between the input and the productivity. 

Claims are accounted for as income when accepted by the customer. 
Expected loss, if any, on a contracts is recognised as expense in the period in which it is foreseen. irrespective of the stage of completion of the contract. 

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract if any, (such as professional fees and commission paid to acquire the contract) are recognized as assets and 

amortized over the term of the contract. 
Contract modifications are accounted for, when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope or contract price. Accounting for 
modificat ions of contracts involves assessing whether the services added to an existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is a standalone selling 

price. Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, 

either as a separate contract, if the additional services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of the existing contract and creation of a 

new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price. 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

CIN No : U70200MH201 0PLC204612 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

iii. Revenue from sale of services: 

Revenue from services rendered over a period of time, such as annual maintenance contracts, are recognised on slraight line basis over the period of the 
performance obligation. Commission income is recognized as and when the terms of the contracts are fulfilled. Repairs & service and installation revenue are 
recognised based on work certified by customer. 
Revenue from service warranty is recognised based on the input cost method(based on the actual performance) of the contract . 

iv. Dividend and Interest income: 
Dividend income is accounted for when deciared and the right to receive the same is established. Interest income is recognized using the effective interest 
method. 

v. Rental income: 
Rental income from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

vi. Other income: 
Other income is recognised as and when right to receive is established. 

(d) Employee benefits 

Short term benefits: 
Salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences and other short term benefits, accruing to employees are recognised at undiscounted amounts in the 
period in which the employee renders the related service. 

Retirement benefits 

Defined contribution plan: 
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as expense when employees have rendered the service entitling them to the 
contribution . The Company makes monthly contributions towards the employees' Provident fund. 

Defined benefit plan: 
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered the service entitling them to the 
contribution. Defined benefit plan: The company makes monthly contributions toward the employees' 
provident fund which is administered by a trust. In the event of an interest shortfall (between the interest declared by the Government and the interest paid by 
the fund) the deficiency is made good by the company, based on an actuarial valuation. The present value of the defined benefit obligation of employees' 
provident fund is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each year end. The Company's liability 
towards gratuity is determined based on the present value of the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets and the net liability or asset is 
recognized in the balance sheet. The net liability or asset represents the deficit or surplus in the plan (the surplus is limited to the present value of the 
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions). The present value of the defined benefit obligation is 
determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each 
year end. Defined benefit costs are composed of: 

i. service cost - recognized in profit or loss; 
ii. net interest on the net liability or asset - recognized in profit or loss: 
iii. re-measurement of the net liability or asset - recognized in other comprehensive income 
Other long-term employee benefits: 
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services 
are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date. 

(e) Leases 

As a lessee 
A the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is or contrains a lease. A contract is, or contains a lease if a contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

At the date of commencement of a lease.the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU assets") and a corresponding lease liability for all leases, except 
for short-term leases and low value leases. Certain lease arrangements include the option to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. 
Lease payments to be made under such reasonably certain extension options are included in the measurement of ROU assets and lease liabilities. 
'(al Right-of-use asset : 
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use 
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of 
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement 
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis from commencement date to earlier of, the end of useful 
life of the ROU assets or the end of the lease term. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section "m" 
Impairment of non-financial assets. 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

CIN No : U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

(f) Foreign currencies 
'The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee (f). 
Income and expenses In foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Foreign currency denominated monetary 

assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and 

restatement are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 
Foreign currency denominated non - monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at historical cost are not retranslated. 

(g) Taxes 

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change during the year, In the deferred tax asset or liability. Current and deferred taxes are 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised In other comprehensive income or in equity, in which case 
the related current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or in equity, respectively. 

Current and Deferred Taxes are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on 
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Tax assets and tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts. 

i. Current income tax 
Provision for current income tax is made for the tax liability payable on taxable income after considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions 
determined In accordance with the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws. 

ii. Deferred tax 
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities 
and their carrying amount, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient 
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised. 

Deferred tax assets paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against 
future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and It is 
probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised. 

(h) Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost. net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Costs comprise of all costs incurred to bring the assets to their location and working condition up to the date the assets are put to their intended use. 

When significant components of plant and equipment are replaced separately, the Company depreciates them based on the useful lives of the components. 
All other assets are depreciated to the,r residual values on written-down value basis over their estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives of the assets are 
as follows: 

Nature of tangible asset Useful llfe (years) 
As per books 

Buildinas 23-60 
Plant and Machinerv 5-20 
Furniture & fixtures 10 
Office equipment 5 
Vehicles 5 
Com outers 6 

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates the assets over estimated useful lives which 

are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic 

and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. 
Any gain or loss arising on derecognilion / disposal of an asset is included in the statement of profit and loss. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted 
prospectively, as appropriate. 

With effect from October 1, 2022, the Company has revised the method of depreciation on property, plant and equipment (PPE) from Written Down Value 
(WDV) method to Straight Line Method (SLM) based on technical assessment done by independent technical consultants with regards to estimated useful 
lives of the assets and pattern of economic benefits expected to be generated from these assets.This change in depreciation method has resulted in lower 
depreciation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss by f 272 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2023. 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

CIN No : U70200MH2010PLC204612 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

Capital work-in-progress and capital advance 
Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the balance sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing 
cost if capitalisation criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and 
rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Advances paid for the acquisition I construction of PPE which are outstanding at the Balance Sheet 
date are dassified under the 'Capital Avances'. 

(i) Intangible assets 

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a straight- line basis over their estimated useful economic 

lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal, 

or when no further economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition is induded in profit or loss. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are as mentioned below: 

Nature of Intangible Asset Method of Amortisation 
Software(Acquired) Straight Line method of assets over a period of 6 years 
The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of Intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, as 
appropriate. 

U) Investment properties 

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, 

if any. 

The Company depreciates the building component of investment property over 23 to 60 years on written down value basis from the date of original purchase. 

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic 

benefit is expected from their disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of investment properties is induded in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(k) Impairment of non-financial assets 

At the end of each reporting period, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite lives are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any 

indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell 
and the value-in-use) is determined for the individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit 
(CGU) to which the asset belongs. During the period of development of an intangible asset, the asset is tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever 

there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. 
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its 

recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised in statement of profit and loss. 
(I) Financial instruments 

Recognition and initial measurement 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial 

assets and financial liabilities are recognized by the Company when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are Directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a 

financial instrument are adjusted to fair value, except where the financial instrument is measured at Fair Value through profit or loss, in which case the 

transaction costs are immediately recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk 
of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents 

consist of balances with banks that are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage. 

For the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as 
they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management. 

Financial assets at amortised cost 
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets to 
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding. 
Wherever the customer has raised issue on contractual / performance obligation on goods and services delivered or received and is under discussion with the 
customer are treated as the disputed amount. 
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCII 
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is 
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding 
and selling financial assets. 

__.--""-'1.nancial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
- Fi cial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 

·nc;9~e n initial recognition. The transaction costs Directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 
im (dii!t ly recognised in statement Profit and Loss. 

'<J> 
r" 
r 
"t) 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

CIN No : U70200MH2010PLC204612 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

Financial liabilities and equity inst ruments 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss indude financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at 
fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred to repurchase in the near term. Whenever the vendor 

has raised issue on contractual / performance obligation on goods and services delivered or received and is under discussion with the vendor are treated as 

the disputed amount. Financial liabilities are designated upon initial recognition at fair value through statement Profit and Loss only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 
are satisfied. 

Other financial liabilities 

Other financial liabilities (induding borrowings and lease rental deposits are subsequent to initial recognition, measured at amortised cost using the effective 

interest rate (EIR) method. 

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities: 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 

recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
Equity instruments 
An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by 

the Company are recognised at the proceeds received net off direct issue costs. 
Derivative financial instruments 

The Company enters into derivative contracts to hedge foreign currency/price risk on unexecuted firm commitments and highly probable forecast 
transactions. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are 

subsequently re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as 

financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. 

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to the Statement of Profit and Loss immediately unless the derivative 

is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the Statement of Profit or Loss depends on the nature of 

the hedged item. 

Derecognition of financial instruments 
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the financial asset 
and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability is derecognised from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation 

specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

Fair value measurement 

When the fair values of financial assets or financial liabilities recorded and disclosed in the financial statements cannot be measured based on quoted prices 

in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are 

taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include 

consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility risk. 

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs lo the fair 

value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in their entirety, which are described as follows: 

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date; 

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

'0 

Page 9 of 42 



Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

CIN No : U70200MH2010PLC204612 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

(m) Inventories 

Inventories including Work- in- Progress (other than construction contracts) are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower, the cost is worked 

out on a weighted average basis. Cost includes all charges for bringing the goods to their present location and condition. Net realizable value represents the 

estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. 

(n) Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions 
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. The amount recognised as a provision is the 
best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. 

Provisions for warranties 
The estimated liability for product warranties is recorded when products are sold / project is completed. These estimates are established using historical 
information on the nature, frequency and average cost of warranty claims and management estimates regarding possible future incidence based on corrective 
actions on product failures. The timing of outflows will vary as and when warranty claims arise being typically upto five years 

Contingencies 
Contingent liabilities exist when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non­
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is 
either not probable that an outflow of resources emboding economic benefi!s will be required or the amount cannot be reliably estimated. Contingent liabilities 
are appropriately disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. 

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements 

(o) Segment reporting 
Segments are identified based on the manner in which the chief operating decision-maker (CODM) decides about the resource allocation and reviews 
performance. 

Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the 
operating activities of the segment. 

Segment revenue resulting from transactions with other business segments is accounted on the basis of transfer price agreed between the segments. Such 
transfer prices are either determined to yield a desired margin or agreed on a negotiated basis. 

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on reasonable basis have been included 
under ' unallocated revenue / expenses / assets/ liabilities". 

(p) Earnings per share 
The Company's Earnings per Share ('EPS') is determined based on the net profit attributable to the shareholders' of the Company. 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit from continuing operations and total profit, both attributable to equity shareholders of the company 
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common and dilutive shares outstanding during the year including share based 
payments, except where the result would be anti-dilutive. 

(q) Current/ Non-current c lassification : 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is: 
• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading, 
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after 

the reporting period. 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 
• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading, 
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities. 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

CIN No : U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

(r) Recent accounting pronouncements: • 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 

as issued from time to lime. For the year ended March 31 , 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable 

to the Company. 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
GIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

3(a) Property Plant & Equipment 

Particulars Buildings 

? Lakhs 
Gross carrying amount 

As at April 1, 2022 1,194.05 
Additions during the year -
Disposals/transfer during the year -
As at March 31 , 2023 1,194.05 

As at April 1, 2023 1,194.05 
Additions during the year -
Disposals/transfer during the year -
As at March 31, 2024 1,194.05 

Accumulated Depreciation 

As at April 1, 2022 570.47 
Disposals during the year -
Depreciation expense for the year 37.70 
As at March 31 , 2023 608.17 

As at April 1, 2023 608.17 
Disposals during the year -
Depreciation expense for the year 21.18 

As at March 31, 2024 629.35 

Net carrying amount 
As at March 31 , 2024 564.70 
As at March 31 , 2023 585.88 

-~~':, 

~~'. f-o, 
~l\~•~ AI 

Plant and Furniture 
Equipment & Fixtures 

r Lakhs r Lakhs 

116,65 0.20 
317.24 134.72 

(2.62) (0,90) 
491.27 134.02 

491 .27 134.02 
166.74 5.43 

(3.29) 
654.72 139.45 

64.70 0.13 
(1.34) (0.85) 
13.12 6.83 
76.48 6.11 

76.48 6.11 
(0.36) 
25.70 12.88 

101.82 19.00 

552.90 120.45 
414.79 127.90 

~~ 
~-

Office Vehicles Computers Total 
Equipment 

r Lakhs r Lakhs r Lakhs f Lakhs 

20.72 113.77 4.65 1,450.04 
11.58 179.55 5.12 708.21 
(1 .49) (48.75) (4.51) (58.27) 
30.81 244.58 5.26 2,099.98 

30.81 244.58 5.26 2,099.98 
2.62 118.76 2.59 296.14 

(52.38) - (55.67) 
33.43 310.96 7.85 2,340.46 

17.69 82.64 3.76 739.39 
(1.20) (46.12) (4.28) (53.79) 
2.68 21.95 0.30 82.58 

19.17 58.47 (0.22) 768.18 

19.17 58.47 (0.22) 768.18 
(28.79) (29.15) 

2.73 47.02 1.96 111.47 

21.89 76.70 1.75 850.51 

11.54 234.26 6.10 1,489.95 
11.64 186.11 5.47 1,331.80 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
GIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

3(b)lnvestment Properties 

Particulars 
Gross carrying amount 

As at April 1, 2022 
Additions during the year 
Disposals during the year 

As at March 31, 2023 
Additions during the year 
Disposals during the year 
As at March 31, 2024 

Accumulated Amortization 

As at April 1, 2022 
Amortization expense for the year 
Disposals during the year 
As at March 31 , 2023 
Amortization expense for the year 
As at March 31, 2024 

Net carrying amount 
As at March 31, 2024 
As at March 31, 2023 

,,·/ ~ o ~~l 
.., 
UJ 
D 

• 
c. 

.I ti 
!Ol°')~j/ 

~-~ 

f Lakhs 

7,149.04 
-
-

7,149.04 

7,149.04 

3,379.40 
226.02 

3,605.42 
127.99 

3,733.41 

3,415.63 
3,543.62 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No : U70200MH201 OPLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Information regarding Income & Expenditure of Investment propertiP.s recoQnised in the statement of p,ofit and loss - -·-·· • - -- ··--- ...... _ -·-·-···-··· -· . -··· _,,_ ·---
Particulars 

Rental income 
Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) associated with rental income 
Total 
Less -Amortization expenses for the year 
Profit arisinn from investment orooertv before indirect exoenses 

31st March, 
2024 

341.78 
(45.09) 
296.69 
127.99 
168.70 

i) As at 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023, the fair value of the property is t 7336.05 lakhs and t 7109.72 lakhs respectively. 

t Lakhs ...... '""' 
31st March, 

2023 

391.59 
130.831 
360.76 
226.02 
134.74 

ii) The valuation is based on fair value assessment done by accredited independent valuer. A valuation model in accordance with that recommended by the International Valuation 
Standards Committee has been applied. Valuation is based on fair value assessment done by registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies (Register Valuers and Valuation). 
Rules 2017. 
iii) The valuer has followed the Comparative Sales method for the purpose of this valuation and is based on the sale of premises in the vicinity. depending on the size, demand for such 
premises, quality of construction, amenities offered, location advantages, and value addition carried out to the premises, etc. 
iv) The fair value measurement for all of the investment property has been categorised as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used. 

v) All the title deed for immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the leasee) are in the name 
of the company. 
vi)The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment properties or has 

any plans for major repairs, maintenance and enhancements. 

vii) Movement in fair value of investmen~erties { Lakhs .............. 

Particu!ars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Opening fair value 7.109.72 7.014.03 
Movement during the year 226.33 95.69 
Closinn fair value 7.336.05 7,109.72 

Jt 
_;_.,.p 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No : U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31 , 2024 

3(c) Intangible Assets 

Particulars Software 

f Lakhs 
Gross carrying amount 

As at April 1, 2022 14.50 
Additions during the year 13.91 
Disposals during the year (0.35) 
As at March 31 , 2023 28.06 

As at April 1, 2023 28.06 
Additions during the year 27.07 
Disposals during the year -
As at March 31 , 2024 55.13 

Accumulated Amortization 

As at April 1, 2022 9.32 
Amortization expense for the year 3.56 
Disposals during the year (0.25 

As at March 31, 2023 12.63 

As at April 1, 2023 12.63 
Amortization expense for the year 5.96 

Disposals during the year 

As at March 31, 2024 18.60 

Net carrying amount 
As at March 31, 2024 36.53 
As at March 31, 2023 15.43 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

4. Financial Assets 

4(a) Loans (Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

Loans to employees 
Inter-Corporate Deposits (refer note:26) 
Total Loans 
Note: 

Non-current 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

24.92 29.89 
- -

24.92 29.89 

i)There are no loans payable on demand without specifying any terms or period of repayment in the current and previous year. 

4(b) Other Finan!:ial Assets 

Particulars 

Security Deposit & Earnest Money Deposit, Considered Good 
Less: Aliowance for Doubtful Deposit 

Security Deposit & Earnest Money Deposit (Net Balance) 

Total Other Financial Assets 

5. Inventories 
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value) 

Particulars 

Traded goods (includes in transit: 7.41 lakhs)( 31st March,2023: t 98.91 lakhs} 
Demo Stock /net of amortisation\ 

~ Lakhs - -

Current 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

37.63 43.45 
12,000.00 15,500.00 
12,037.63 15,543.45 

~ Lakhs - ----- -

Current 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

144.95 158.27 
130.50) 130.50) 

114.45 127.77 

114.45 127.77 

t Lakhs . . ·-
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

4,523.11 3,734.64 
419.25 205.13 

4,942.36 3,939.77 

The above inventory value are net of provision made oft 288 Lakh (31st March, 2023 ~ 288 Lakh} for slow moving, obsolete and defective inventories. 

6. Current Investments ~ Lakhs 
Particulars 

Investment in units of mutual funds 
Mutual fund unquoted 
Kotak liquid direct gro11,1h 
HDFC liquid-DP direct growth 

1ate amount of investments and market value thereof: 

,gate carrying value of unquoted investments 

·egate market value of unquoted investments 

Particulars 

31st March, 2024 
Units Amount 

41 ,045.40 
21 ,107.85 
62,153.25 

2,001.43 
1,000.69 
3,002.12 

31st March_,_ 2023 
Units I Amount 

28,955.93 
28,955.93 

31st March, 2024 

3,002.12 

3_,_002.12 

1L013.33 
1,013.33 

~ Lakhs 
31st March_,_ 2023 

1,013.33 

1,013.33 

t 
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Blue Star Engineer ing & Electronics limited 
CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

7. Trade Receivables 

Particulars 

Trade Receivables considered good-Unsecured 
Trade Receivables - Credit imparied 

Less: Allowance for doublful debts and Expected credit loss Provision 

Total Trade receivables 

, Lakhs 

Current 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

8,986.81 8,558.37 
1,129.89 1,129.89 

10,116.70 9,688.26 
1,393.65 1,407.96 

8,723.05 8,280.30 

The movement for aHowance for doubtful debts durina the \/ear in resoect of trade receivables containfna sionificant cred~ risk are as follows· 
Particu lars 

Opening balances as on 1st April 

Provision for doubtful debts and advances and exnected credit loss (net) 
Closina balance as on 31st March 

31st March, 202.( 31st March, 2023 
1,407.96 1,316.38 

114.31) 91.58 
1,393.65 1,407.96 

No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from 
firms or private companies respectively in Yrtlich any director is a partner, a director or a member. 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No : U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

7a Trade receivables ageing schedule 
Trade receivables as on March 31 , 2024 , - - -

Particulars 

Undisputed 
Undisputed - considered good 
Undisputed - credit impaired 
Total (A) 

Disputed 
Disputed - considered good 
Disputed - considered doubtful 
Total (8) 
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts I Expected credit loss ( Cl 
Grand Total (A+B-C) 

Trade receivables as on March 31, 2023 

Particulars 

Undisputed 
Undisputed - considered good 
Undisputed - credit impaired 
Total (A) 

Disputed 
Disputed - considered Good 
Disputed - considered doubtful 
Total (8) 
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts and Expected credit loss (C) 
Grand Total (A+B-C) 

Outstanding for following periods from due dates of payments as at 31st March 2024 f Lakhs 
Less than 6 6 Month -1 

2-3 Years More than 3 
Grand Total Not due 

Months 1-2 Years 
Year years 

3,505.40 3,828.71 682.43 478.50 260.08 231.69 8,986.81 
. . . 3.53 25.61 1,100.75 1,129.89 

3,505.40 3,828.71 682.43 482.03 285.69 1,332.44 10,116.70 

. . . . . . . 

. - . - - -

. . . . - . -
(1,393.65) 

3,505.40 3,828.71 682.43 482.03 285.69 1,332.44 8,723.05 

Outstanding for following periods from due dates of payments as at 31st March 2023 f Lakhs 

Not due Less than 6 6 Month -1 
2-3 Years More than 3 

Grand Total Months 1-2 Years 
Year years 

1,347.84 5,584.06 699.64 652.63 90.39 183.80 8,558.37 
. 1.20 1.55 43.00 24.51 1,059.63 1,129.89 

1,347.84 5,585.26 701.19 695.63 114.90 1,243.43 9,688.26 

- . . . . - -
- . . . . . -
- . . . . . -. (1,407.96) 

1,347.84 5,585.26 701.19 695.63 114.90 1,243.43 8,280.30 

(i)Trade receivables are on non interest bearing credit terms and the credit period of the products are determined by the type of the products. In case of long term construction contracts, payment is generally due 

upon completion of milestone as per terms of contract. In certain contracts, short term advances are received as per payment terms in the contract, before the performance obligation is satisfied. 

(ii) The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment losses on trade receivables and contract assets. The Company follows the simplified approach for 

recognition of impairment allowance on trade receivables and contract assets. The application of the simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises 

, ,· Y-~ i~ t allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. ECL impairment loss allowance recognised during the period is recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss. This amount is reflected under 
'\' 

' 0~ the head'«ot er expenses' in the Statement of Profit and loss. 
<' < 

""""'' , ' , 
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Blue S:ar Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

8. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Particulars 

Balances with banks: 
- In current accounts 
- Fixed Deposits 

Cash ·on hand 

9 Other Assets 

Partlclaurs 

Contract Asset3 from construction contracts 
Less: Impairment Allowance 
Net Contract Assets from construction contracts 
Contract Assets from amual maintenance contract services 
PrepJid Gratuity (refer note 25) 
Capital Advances 
Balance with Government Authorities 
Vendor Advances 
Prepaid Expenses 
Accured Income 

The movement for allowance for doubtful contract asset during the year are as follows · 

Particulars 

Opening Balance 
Allowance reversed durina the vear 
Closino balancs 

Categorisation of financial assets carried at amortized cost 

Particulars 

Trade receivables (refer note 7) 
Cash & cash equivalents {refer note 8) 
Loans (current & non current) (refer note 4a) 
Other Financial Assets (refer note 4b) 
Total financial assets carried at ammortlzed cost 

Non-current 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

7.61 
23.90 113.35 
55.28 52.96 

2,093.88 1,195.34 

2,180.67 1,361.65 

f Lakhs 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

1,200.68 2,711.31 
4,279.94 10.61 

7.07 5.90 
5 487,69 2 727.82 

f Lakhs 
Current 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

271.87 288.96 
19.34\ 

271.87 279.62 
157.19 221. 16 

205.10 284.53 
1,857.04 2,067.05 
1,636.04 2,521.29 

132.70 
4 259.94 5,373.65 

t Lakhs 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

(9.34) (9.34) 
9.34 

19.34' 

t Lakhs 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

8,986.81 8,558.37 
5,487.69 2,727.82 

12,062.55 15,573.34 
114.45 127.77 

26 651 .50 26 987.30 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Finan cf al Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

10(a) Share capital 

Authorised share capital 

10°!. Cumulative redeemable preference shares off 
100 each 

Equity shares off 2 each 

Tenns & rights to preference shares : 

31st March, 2024 
No. 

18.00.000 

5,50,00,000 

31st March, 2023 

' Lakh No. ' Lakh 

1,800.00 18,00,000 1,BQ0.00 

1,100.00 5,50,00,000 1.100.00 

The preference shares shall rank for the dividend in priority to the equity s:iares of the Company in the event of increase in share capital or winding up of the Company up to amount 
of dividend or any arrears of dividend. Preference share holders will not have any further right to participate in the profits or assets of the Company. 

Terms/rights attached to equity shares 

The company has only one dass of Equity Shares having par value of f . 2 per share. Each share holder is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the company, 
the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in the proportion of 
number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

Issued and subscribed and paid up Equity share capital 

Equity Shares ot f 2 each Issued, subscribed & 
fully paid up Balance as at 31st March, 2024 Balance as at 31st March, 2023 

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount 
At the beainnina of tr.e vear 5,29,25,052 1 058.bO 5 29 25,052 1,058.50 
Issued durino the vear 
Outstandina at the end of the vear 5,29,25,052 1,058.50 5,29,25,052 1,058.50 

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares In the Company 

Name of the shareholder 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 
Numbers % holding In the cla&s Numbers % holding In the 

class 
Blue Star limited, the Holding Company and its 

5,29,25,052 100.00% 5,29,25,052 100.00% Nominees 

Shareholding pattern of promoters and changes In holding during the year 

Name of the shareholder 31st March, 2024 31st M,rch, 2023 
% Changes during 

Numbers % holding in the class Numbers % holding In the the year 
class 

Blue Star Limited, the Holding Company and its 
5,29,25,052 100.00% 5,29,25,052 100.00% 0% Nominees 

There were no shares issued for consideration other ~han cash during the period of 5 years imrr.ediately preceding the reporting date. 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

10Ib) Other Equity-Nature & purpose of Reserve 

Securities premium - Where the Company issues shares at a premium. whether for cash or otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the premium received on those 
shares have been transferred to ·securities Premium Reserve·. These reserves shall be used in accordance with the section 52 of the companies Act, 2013 as amended from time 
to time. 

Capital reserve •The capital reserve recognised in the financial statements denote the excess of the Net Assets acquired over the amount of consideration transferred in business 
combination transactions. These reserves shall not be utilised for payment of dividend. 

General reserve/ retained earnings • General reserve is created out of the profits earned by the Company by way of transfer from surplus In the statement of profit and loss. The 
Company can use this reserve for payment of dividend and issue of full:1 paid•up and not paid-up bonus shares. 

Other Equity 

For the year ended March 31, 2024 t Lakhs 

Reserves & Surclus Total Other Particulars 
Share Premium Capital Reserves Retained Earning Equity 

For the vear ended March 31, 2024 
As at Acril 1 2023 2 088.87 7 762.48 11 439.01 21 290.36 
Adiustment durina the vear (refer note :35) 1205.00) (205.00 
Profit for the vear 4 635,02 4 635.02 
Other Comorehensive lncomel(loss) 16.66) 16.66\ 
As at March 31, 2023 1,883.87 7,762.48 16,067.38 25,713.72 

For the year ended March 31 2023 
Reserves & Surplus 

Total Other Particulars Share Premium 
Capital Reserves Retained Earning Equity 

(refer note 9Cbl\ 
As at Acril 1, 2022 2,088.87 7 762.48 7 409,07 17 260.42 
Prorit for the vear 4 027.82 4 027.82 
Other Comcrehensive lncomel(loss) 2.1 2 2.1 2 

As at March 31 , 2022 2,088.87 7,762.48 11,439.01 21 ,290.36 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No : U70200MH201 0PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

11 Trade Payables 

Particulars 

Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer below note) 
Dues of other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Total Payable 

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises Disclosure 

~ Lakhs 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

398.04 1.51 
7,833.74 9,190.41 

8,231.78 9,191.92 

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available 
with the Comoany 

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

(a) (i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of 
accountina vear 398.04 1.51 
(ii) Interest due on above 

- -
(b) Amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Act 

- 0.24 
(c) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 

I oavment (which have been oaid but beyond the due date during the year - -
(d) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 
accounting year - -
(e) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Act, 2006 

- -

The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as 'Micro and Small 
Enterprises' on the basis of information available with the Company. 
• Interest on overdue balances of micro and small enterprises is fully provided. Interest provided is unclaimed by the vendor. 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

Note: 11 (cont.) 
Trade Payables Ageing Schedule 
Trade payables as on 31st March, 2024 

Particulars 

Acceptance 
Undisputed 
Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Disputed 
Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Total 

Trade payables as on 31st March, 2023 

Particulars 

Acceptance 
Undisputed 
Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Disputed 
Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

Total 

.,,.;::;:--~ 

(/:

;.,---0 ,sv,s:1. ~ 

//,~-"' ~; 1/< \" 
( :( ~ ~18/ I ' __ ,.,.~ \~ »~~ 

' ' /~ 

? Lakhs 

Outstanding for following periods from due dates of payments 
as at 31st March 2024 

Total 
Not Due 

Less than 1 
1-2 Years 2-3 Years 

More than 3 
Year Years 

421.47 421.47 

398.04 398.04 
4,286.87 2,683.94 161.49 81.06 198.91 7,412.27 
5,106.38 2,683.94 161.49 81.06 198.91 8,231.78 

- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -

5,106.38 2,683.94 161 .49 81.06 198.91 8,231.78 

Outstanding for following periods from due dates of payments 
as at 31st March 2023 Total 

Not Due 
Less than 1 

1-2 Years 2-3 Years 
More than 3 

Year Years 
2.84 2.84 

- 1.47 0.03 0.01 - 1.51 
5,590.63 3,189.59 201 .57 14.92 190.85 9,187.57 
5,593.47 3,191 .06 201.60 14.93 190.85 9,191.92 

- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -

5,593.47 3,191.06 201.60 14.93 190.85 9,191.92 

~ & 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

12 Other Financial Liabilities 

Particulars 

Financial liabilities at amortized cost 
Payable on purchase of Property Plant & Equipment 
Security deposits 

Total other financial liabilities at amortized cost 

Total 

13 Other Liabilities 

Particulars 

Contract liabilities from construction contracts 
Contract liabilities from annual maintenance contract services 
Advances from customers 
Dues to Statutory bodies 
Others 
Total 

Cate_g_orisation of financial liabilities : -
Particulars 

Trade payables (refer note 11) 
Other financial Liabilities (refer note 12) 
Total financial liabilities carried at amortized cost 

~~·,s~~ 
f-~ ~ 
r~:.\ .. .,,, .,,,~ 11 ).<I 
~n~~~/-

/ 
A, 

--

{ Lakhs 
~ ---·- --

Non-current 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

2.02 -
255.95 255.14 

257.97 255.14 

257.97 255.14 

{ Lakhs 
Non-Current Current 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

- - 1,980.52 2,090.68 
1,199.33 1,842.82 1,759.06 2,159.50 

- - 2,110.64 3,132.40 
- - 587.78 228.08 
- - 193.76 170.81 

1,199.33 1,842.82 6,631 .76 7,781.47 

{ Lakhs 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

8,231.78 9,191 .92 
257.97 255.14 

8,489.75 9,447.06 

'p 
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Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No: U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

14 Provisions 

Non Current 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Particulars 

f Lakhs t Lakhs 

Provision for employee benefits {refer note 25) 
Provision for Gratuity 0.89 
Provision for Compensated absences . . 
Provision for Additional Gratuity 2.41 

Total (A) - 3.30 

Other provisions 
Provision for warranties . -
Provision for forseeable losses - . 

Total (B) -
Total !A+Bl 3.30 

Provision for warranties 

Current 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

f Lakhs t Lakhs 

. . 
120.78 113.20 

. . 

120.78 113.20 

943.06 758.63 
58,74 93.97 

1,001.80 852.60 

1,122.58 965.80 

Warranty is provided to the customer for a period of 12-60 months from the handing over of the project and on sale of traded goods. A 
provision is recognised for expected warranty claims comprising of claims for material, spares.labour and other items in connection with the 
sale/contract on jobs completed during provision periods and on warranty provided on sale of traded goods, based on past experience of such 
claims. 

Movement in orovision for warranty 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 
Balance as at 1st April 758.63 458.44 
Provision made during the year 545.58 363.56 
Utilized /Adjusted during the year (361.15) (63.37) 
Balance as at 31st March 943.06 758.63 

Movement in orovision for forseeable losses 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 
Balance as at 1st April 93.97 93.14 
Provision made during the year 13.08 
Utilized /Adjusted during the year (35.23) (1 2.24) 
Balance as at 31st March 58.74 93.97 
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Notes to Finan~lal Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

15. Income tax 
A) Current tax asset / (llablll:ies) 

Particulars 

Opening Balance 
Less: Current tax payable for the year 
Add: Taxes paid (Net of refund) 
Closing Balance 

B) Deferred Tax Assets 

Particulars 

Deferred Tax Asset • [AJ 

Provision for loss allowance 

Provisions made disallowed and allowed only on payment basis 

Written Down Value of Fixed Assets 
Others 

Deferred Tax Liability - [BJ 

Written Down Value of Fixed Assets 

Others 

Net Deferred Tax Asset - (A-BJ 

C) Movement In Deferred Tax Assets 

Particulars 

Deferred Tax Asset • [AJ 

Provision for loss allowance 
Provisions made disallowed and allowed only on payment basis 

Written Down Value of Fixed Assets 

Others 

Deferred Tax Liability - [BJ 

Written Down Value of Fixed Assets 
Others 

Net Deferred Tax Asset - [A-BJ 

f Lakhs 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

(1,257.02) (722.73) 
(1 ,642.46) (1,477.08) 
1,035.73 942.79 

(1 ,863.75) (1,257.02) 

f Lakhs 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

350.75 354.36 

12.58 5.45 
5.44 -

2.48 

- (2.04) 

14.31) (2.40) 
364.46 357.85 

Charge/ (Credit ) to Statement of P&L 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

3.61 (47.83) 

(7.13) 11.33 

(7.48) 23.03 

2.48 (2.48) 

-
2.04 

1.91 (0.87) 
(6.61) (14.79) 

D)Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for 31 st March, 2024 and 31st 
March, 2023 : 

f Lakhs 
For the vear ended 

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Accounting profit before income tax 6,273.12 5,489.40 

Income tax at India's statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (31 March 2023: 25.168%) 
1,578.82 1,381.57 

Expenses disallowed for tax purpose 19.39 8.28 
Benefit of lower tax rate on account of certain income/ exp. 12.21 (11.38) 
Disallowance on depreciation of investment properties 27.68 83.10 
At the effective Income tax rate 1,638.10 1,461.57 

E) Income tax expense reported In the s tatement of profit and loss 

For the year ended 

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31 st March, 2023 

Profi t or loss Section 
Current Income tax: 
Current tax 1644.71 1476.37 
Total current income tax charge 1644.71 1476.37 
Deferred tax: 
Deferred tax crediV charge recognised in the statement of profit and loss /6.61\ 114.79) 
Income tax expense reported In the statement of profit or loss 1,638.10 1,461 .58 

F) Income tax expense reported In the other comprehensive income 
For the year ended 

------

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Profll,of I~{ Section 
~~l~co e tax: 
Current t x 
~1i rsure111e~t gain/( loss) on defined benefit plans 2.25 (0.71) 
In me tdx-e~ ense rgported In the other comprehensive Income 2.25 (0.71 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

16. Revenue from operations 

Particulars 

Revenue from operations 
Sale of products 
Sale of services 
Contract revenue 
Rental income 
Other operating revenue 
Sale of scrap 
Commission income 
Total revenue from operations (refer note 37) 

17. Other income 

Particulars 

Interest Income 
- Inter-Corporate deposit 
- Tax refund 
- Banks deposit 

Net Translation gain on monetary assets/liabilities 
Net gain on sale of investments in mutual fund 
Provisions and liabilities no longer required, written back 
Other Income 
Total 

f Lakhs 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 31 st March, 2023 

31 ,264.91 28,369.35 
5,295.12 5,188.54 
1,208.37 1,037.54 

341 .78 391 .59 

2.98 3.41 
1.10 1.80 

38,114.26 34,992.23 

f Lakhs 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

1,083.02 879.1 9 
- 1.78 

136.88 0.13 
8.08 32.95 

68.19 18.25 
186.83 122.40 

5.51 2.32 
1 488.51 1,057.02 
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18. Cost of Raw Material and Components Consumed 

Particulars 

Cost of material consumed and project costs 

Total cost of material consumed and oro;ect costs 

I Purchase of Stock in Trade 

Inventories at the end of the year 
Traded goods 

Inventories at the beginning of the year 
Traded goods 

Changes in Inventories of traded goods 

19. Employee benefits expense 

Particulars 

Salaries, wages and bonus 
Contribution to provident and other funds 
Gratuity expense (refer note 25) 
Other employment benefits (refer note 25) 
Staff welfare exoenses 

20. Depreciation and amortization expenses 

Particulars 

Depreciation on Property Plant & Equipment (refer note 3(al) 
Amortization of Intangible Assets (refer note 3(cl) 
Deoreciation on Investment Prooerties /refer note 3(b)) 

l > 

f Lakhs 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

3,148.97 3,711.26 

3,148.97 3,711.26 

23,907.22 22,928.s2 1 

4,942.36 3 939.77 
4,942.36 3,939.77 

3 939.77 1,744.70 
3,939.77 1,744.70 

(1,002.59' (2,195.071 

f Lakhs 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

3,629.42 3,175.35 
138.25 125.08 

36.19 33.66 
58.50 41.54 
51.25 40.65 

3,913.61 3,416.28 

f Lakhs 
For the year ended 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

111.47 82.59 
5.96 3.64 

127.99 226.01 
245.42 312.24 
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21. Finance costs 

Particulars 

Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 

- Interest on Bank borrowings 
Bank charges 
Other interest charaes 

22. Other expenses 

Particulars 

Stores and spares consumed 
Rent 
Rates and taxes 
Power and fuel 
Insurance 
Repairs and maintenance 
Advertising and sales promotion 
Conference Expenses 
Communicat ion Expenses 
Commission, discounts and incentives on Sales 
Freight and forwarding charges 
Travelling and conveyance 
Printing and stationery 
Legal and professional fees 
Directors sitting fees 
Payment to auditors (Refer details A below ) 
Corporate social responsibility expenses (Refer details B below) 
Loss on sale of property, planl, and equipment (net) 
Bad debts / advances written off 
Provision for doubtful debts and advances and expected credit loss (net) 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Share Service charges (refer note 26) 

A. Payment to auditors 

Particulars 

As auditor: 
Audit fee 
Limited review 
Tax audit 

In other capacity 
Reimbursement of expenses 

B Corporate social responsibility expenses 

Particulars 

i) Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 
ii) Amount of expenditure incurred 

iii) ShortfalV (Excess) during the end of the year 
iv) Total of previous year shortfall/ excess 
v) Reason for shortfall 
vi) Nature of CSR activities 

vii) Details of related parties 

viii)V\/here a provision made with respect to a liability by entering into a contractual obligation, the 
mover1ent in the orovision durina the vear shown separately 

C The Company has made political contribution oft Nil during FY 23-24 ( FY 22-23 t Nil). 

23. Earning Per Share (EPS) 

The following renects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations : 

Particulars 

Profit attributable to equity share holders of the company 
Weighted average number of Equity shares 

Basic and diluted earnings per share 

f Lakhs 
For the ear ended 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

13.37 29.37 
49.76 48.43 
13.32 4.95 
76.45 82.75 

f Lakhs 
For the ear ended 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

0.73 0.61 
307.44 251 .40 

44.38 57.40 
9.91 7.23 

20.81 34.03 
37.58 18.25 

112.54 89.44 
0.10 0.32 

90.19 70.97 
32.20 

307.34 149.27 
976.38 710.67 

25.15 14.82 
622.44 466.84 

11.25 3.00 
29.14 29.45 
77.04 79.41 

2.10 1.48 
100.57 
(14.31) 91.58 
147.79 63.50 
132.00 132.00 

3,040.57 2 303.87 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

18.61 17.50 
6.70 6.25 
2.70 2.40 
. . 

1.13 3.30 
29.14 29.45 

t Lakhs 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

77.04 79.41 
77.04 79.41 

. . 

. . 

. . 
Diagnostic support Diagnostic support 

programme programme 

t 20.04 Lakh Paid NA 
to Blue Star 
Foundation 

NA NA 

31st March, 2024 31 st March, 2023 

4,635.02 4,027.82 
5,29,25,052 5,29,25,052 

8.76 7.61 
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24 Critical accounting judgtments and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities. and, income and expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources. Such judgments, estimates and associated 
assumptions are evaluated based on the Company's historical experience, existing mar1<et conditions, as well as forward looking estimates 
inciuding estimation of the effects of uncertain future events, which are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may 

differ from these estimates, The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates 
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future 
periods if the revision attects both current and future periods. 

The following are the critical judgements and estimations Iha! have been made by the management in the process of applying the Company's 
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements and/or key sources of 
estimation uncertainty that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
the ne><t financial year. 

Expected cost of completion of contracts 

'For the purpose of arriving at Revenue from construction contracts. the Company's Management estimates the cost to completion for each 
project. Management systematically reviews future projected costs and compares the aggregate of costs incurred to date and future cost 
projectivns against budgets, based on which, proportionate revenue (or anticipated losses), if any, are recognised. 

'Contract variat ions 
Contract variations are recognised as revenue to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue which can be reliably measured 
and is probable that the economic benefits associated will flow to the Company. This requires the exercise of judgement by management, 
based on prior experience, the contract terms. manner and terms of settlement, etc. 
Rebatos and discounts 

'The Company provides r~bates and discounts to its dealers and channel partners based on an expectation of volumes to be achieved and 

parameters such as exclusivity in marketing the products of the Company, quality of showroom among other parameters. This involves a 

certain degree of estimation of w'hether all the parameters to provide discounts have been achieved. Provision for discount and rebates is 

based on the Company's past experience of volumes achieved vis•8•vis targets and expected volumes to be achieved for the year. 
Warranties 

Provision for warranty cosls in respect of products sold which are still under warranty is based on the best estimate of the expenditure that will 

be required to setUe U1e present obligation at the end of the reporting period. Warranty costs are estimated by the management based on 

specific warranties, claims and claim history. Provision is made for estimated liability in respect of warranty cost in the year of sale of goods. 

Employee benefit plans 

The present value of defined benefit obligations is determined on an actuarial basis using a number of under1ying assumptions, including the 

discount rate and expected increase in salary costs. Arly changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of obligations. 

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at least once a year. The lives are dependent upon 
an assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely economic lives basedon various internal and external factors 
induding relative efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information available to the 
Management. 

Fair value measurement of financial instruments 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in 
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from 
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements 
indude considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the 
reported fair value of financial instruments. 

lmpainnent of financial assets 

The impaim,ent provision for financial assets (other than trade receivables) a1e based on assumptions of risk of default and expected loss 

rates. The Company makes judgements about these assumptions for selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the 
Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking eslimates at the end of each reporting period. 
Trad2 receivables are stated at their nominal values as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts v,/hich are 
b~sed on the aging of the receivable balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off wtien management deems 
them not be collectible. 

Income taxes and Deferred taxes 
Provision of current and deferred tax liabilities is dependent on Management estimate of the allowability or otherwise of expenses incurred and 

other debits to profit or loss. Deferred lax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the e><tent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 

available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax 

assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. 
Significant judgements are also involved in determining the provision for income taxes, induding amount expected to be paid/recovered for 

uncertain tax positions. In assessing the probable outcome of the uncertain tax positions management considers the expert advice, past 
pronouncements, judgements on the matter under litigation, changes in regulations and related interpretations and accordingly, determines the 

amount of requisite tax provisions and / or contingent liability disdosures, as applicable. The actual outcome of the uncertain tax positions 
could be different than those estimated by the management. 

Expected cost of completion of projects/ Long tenn service contracts 

Kif 
5 dr~'\ urpose of arriving at Revenue from projects, the Company's Management estimates the cost to completion for each .project. 

Ma,f ,t systematically reviews future projected costs and compares the aggregate of costs incurred to date and future costs proJecbons 

again gets, on tile basis of which, proportionate revenue (or anticipated losses), if any, are recognized. 
81 

Page 30 of 42 



Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
CIN No : U70200MH2010PLC204612 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

25 Employee benefits disclosure 

I. Defined benefit plans 

a. Gratuity 

The company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan ('the Gratuity Plan') covering eligible employees.The fund formed by the Parent Company manages the investments of the 
Gratuity fund. The Gratuity Plan provides a lumpsum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective 
employee's salary and the tenure of employment with the Group. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation , performed by an independent actuary, at each 
Balance Sheet date using the projected unit credit method. The Company contributes all ascertained liabilities to the Gratuity Fund Trust (the Trust). 

The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its Balance Sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and Losses, through remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) 
are recognised in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.The actual return of the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by 
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation is recognised in other comprehensive income. The effect of any plan amendments are recognised in net profit in the profit or 
loss. 

Expected rate of return on investements is determined based on the assessment made by the Company at the beginning of the year on the return expected on its existing portfolio, along with the 
estimated incremental investments to be made during the year. Yield on portfolio is calculated on a suitable mark-up over the benchmark Governement securities of similiar maturities. The Compay 
expects to contribute t 30.82 lakhs in Gratuity Fund FY 2024-25 (FY 2023-24: 16.01 lakhs) 

Disclosure information : 
(i) Change in present value of defined benefit obligation: 

f Lakhs 
~ --··· ·-

Particulars 
Gratuity (Funded) Additional Gratuity 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 
Defined benefit obligations at the beginning of the year 319.88 315.07 2.41 2.66 
Current service cost 35.81 34.50 0.13 0.14 
Interest expense 23.56 20.78 0.18 0.18 

Benefits paid (112.51) (47.91) (0.80) (0.30) 

Remeasurements 
a. Due to change in demographic assumptions 
a. Due to change in financial assumptions 3.15 (12.80) 0.02 (0.10) 

b. Due to experience adjustments 5.62 10.24 0.11 (0.17) 

Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 275.51 319.88 2.05 2.41 

)JI! 
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(ii) Change in fair value of plan assets 

Particulars 

Fair Value of the plan asset at the beginning of the year 
Return on plan assets (Interest income) 
Contributions 
Benefit paid 
Fair value of plan assets at end of the year 

Gratuity I Funded) 
31st March, 2024 

318.99 
23.50 
55.00 

(112.51) 
284.98 

I iii) Components of defined benefit cost recognised in statement of profit & loss (P&L) 

Particulars 
Gratuity jFunded) 

31st March, 2024 

Current service cost 35.81 

Interest cost 
Expected return on plan asset 0.07 

Total 35.88 

(iv) Components of defined benefit costs recognized in other comprehensive income IOCI) 

Particulars 
Gratuity IFunded) 

31st March, 2024 
a. Due to change in demographic assumptions -
a. Due to change in financial assumptions 3.15 
b. Due to change in experience adjustments 5.62 
c. (Return) on plan assets (excl. interest income) -
Total 8.77 
Total defined benefit cost recognized in P&L and OCI 44.65 

(v) Net liability/ (asset) in Balance Sheet 

Particulars 
Gratuity (Funded) 

31st March, 2024 
Present value of Defined benefit obligation 275.51 

Fair value of plan assets 284.98 

Net liability / (asset) (9.47) 

~ 

' Lakhs 
Additional Gratuity 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 
332.71 - -
21.95 - -
12.25 - -

(47.92) - -
318.99 - -

, Lakhs 
Additional Gratuity 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 
34.50 0.13 0.14 

- 0.18 0.18 
(1 .16) - -

33.34 0.31 0.32 

, Lakhs 
Additional Gratuity 

31st March, 2023 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

- - -
(12.80) 0.02 (0.10) 
10.24 0.1 1 (0.17) 

- - -
(2.56) 0.13 (0.27) 
30.78 0.45 0.05 

, Lakhs ·-·· 

Additional Gratuity 
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

319.88 2.05 2.41 

318.99 0.00 -
0.89 2.05 2.41 
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(vi) Net defined benefit liability/ (asset) reconciliation 

Particulars 

Net defined benefit liability (asset) at the beginning of the year 
Defined benefit cost recognised in P&L 
Total remeasurements recognised in OCI 
Employer contributions 
Employer direct benefit payments 
Net defined benefit liability/ (asset) as of end of the year 

The major categories of plan assets are as follows: - ··- - --- -
Particulars 
Insurance company products 
Others 
Total 

Gratuity (Funded) 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

0.89 (17.64) 
35.88 33.34 
8.77 (2.56) 

(55.00) (12.25) 
- -

(9.46) 0.89 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 
227.98 255.18 
57.00 63.80 

284.98 318.98 

The Principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and additional gratuity for the company's plan are is shown as below: 

Particulars 

Discount rate 
Rate of return on plan assets 
Mortality rate 
Salary escalation rate Directors ,management-staff, others 
Attrition rate 
Disability rate 
Normal retirement age 

- '< '1 

~( ·1U\18A/ j 'f), * ~ , .,, 
* ) , .. 

. \~~ 

Gratuity (Funded) / Additional Gratuity 
31st March, 2024 

100% of IALM 2012-14 
10%,7%,3% 

5% of mortality rate 
65 Years for Directors 
60 Years for Others 

~~ 
e star£/} ~ ,): .,....... ¼· 

<. i, . 
"'~ 

)!/! I .::; 
<.. 

A.. ·, 

31st March, 2023 
7.15% 7.35% 
7.37% 6.60% 

100% of IALM 2012-14 
10%,7%,3% 

11% 11% 
5% of mortality rate 
65 Years for Directors 
60 Years for Others 

f Lakhs - -

Additional Gratuity 
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

2.41 2.66 
0.31 0.32 
0.13 (0.27) 

- -
- (0.30) 

2.85 2.41 
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Risk analysis 
Interest Rate risk: The plan exposes the Company to the risk of all interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus resull 
in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in financial statements). 

Liquidity Risk: This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts.This may arise due to non availabilty of enough cash / cash equivalent to meet the liabilities or 
holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time. 

Salary Escalation Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary 
in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liabilty. 

Demographic Risk: The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the 

liability.The Company is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption. 

Regulatory Risk: Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended from time to time). There is a risk of change in regulations requiring 
higher gratuity payouts(e.g.lncrease in the maximum limit on gratuity of Rs. 20,00,000). 

Asset Liability Mismatching or Market Risk: The duration of the liabilty is longer compared to duration of assets.exposing the Company to market risk for vol2tilities/fall in interest rate 

Investment Risk : The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment. 

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at March 31 , 2024 is shown as below: 

Particu!ars Gratuity (Funded) Additional Gratuity 
Assumptions 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Decrease in discount rate (0.5%) 283.71 328.30 2.12 2.47 

Increase in discount rate (0.5%) 267.74 311 .86 1.99 2.33 

Decrease in Salary growth rate (0.5%) 267.69 311.80 -
l.icrease in Salary growth rate (0.5%) 283.69 328.29 -
Decrease in attrition rate (0.5%) 279.05 320.36 1.95 2.26 

Increase in attrition rate (0.5%) 271 .98 318.77 2.07 2.45 

Decrease in mortality rate (0.5%) 275.50 319.86 2.05 2.40 

Increase in mortality rate (0.5%) 275.52 319.89 2.06 2.41 

The sensitivity ana!yses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at 
the end of the reporting year 2023-24 

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting year 2023-24 is 5 years. 

I. General description of significant de~ined plans: 
1. Gratuity plan 
Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees on separation /retirement based on 15 days last drawn salary for each completed years of service after continous service for 5 years. 

"·ional gratuity 
I gratuity is payable as per the specific rules of the Company i.e t 5,000/- for staff and t10,000/- for Managers subject to qualifying service for 15 years. 

·1 

,~J f~ Jj;Y _ 'i''. 
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Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation 

Expected cash flows 
1 year 
2 to 5 year 
6 to 10 year 
More than 1 0 year 
Total 

II. Defined contribution plans 
a. Provident fund 

-- ~ "'Lakhs 
Gratuity (funded) Additional Gratuity 

30.75 0.24 
176.83 1.10 
103.29 0.95 
145.62 1.23 
456.49 3.52 

The Company's contribution to provident fund and other funds aggregating during the period ended 31st March, 2024 is t 138.25 lakhs ( and during the year ended March 31, 2023: t 125.08 lakhs) 
has been recognised in the statement of profit and loss under the head employee benefit expense (refer note 19). 

b.Compensated Absence Plan 
Under the compensated absences plan, leave encashment is payable to all eligible employees on separation from the Company due to death, retirement, superannuation or 
resignation at the rate of daily salary, as per current accumulation of leave days. 

Amount recognized in Balance Sheet 

Particulars 

Amount recognised in Balance Sheet 

Amount recognized in Profit and Loss 

Particulars 

Amount recognised in Profit and loss 

y-

!lc 
' ,,,._;..J •5 ~ ~ ,__,y-~·,~ 

CJ J" ,;j .... _,,), 

'; oAI ~ 

~~ }h 

Com.E_ensated absences as at 
31st March, 2024 I 31st March, 2023 

120.781 113.20 

Compensated absences for the year ended 
31st March, 2024 I 31st March, 2023 

58.501 

C.' 
g, - ·,: 

JI
,,. 

, c:) 
<O 

!:>< 

..... ,.-,· '3-.?> 

-~-

41.54 
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26 Rdated party disclosure 

a) Name of the Rel;;ited parties where control exists Irrespective o4' w~ther transactions have occurred o, not 

Rdated parties where conltO,s exists• Parent Company 

b) 

cJ 

•I 

Blue Slar Umrted 

Fellow Subsidiary with whom llansactlons are done 
Blue Sta, Cllmatech Lid 
Blue Star Foundation 
Blue Siar S~ lems and Solutions LLC 

Key Ma~ement Personnel 
Mr. Vir Advari, Cha1tman 
Mr. B Thagarajan, Director 
Mr. N1khl Ramaklllhna Sohot1. Oiredor 
Mr. Prem Kallath, Chef Executrve Officer 
Mr. AMr.d Balap, Nol),Execwve and Independent Director 
Mr. Vikram NinAa, No~xecutive and lndependenl Oiredor 
Mrs. Su...aina MIJlth-/, Nor,•Encvtr.e and Independent OirectOf 

Particutars 
r n actions with rel r>ar /et; 

§I~ Slit I.Im!!~ 

Income: 
Cor(ract Revenue 
Sale ol Products 
Rent income 

EXpense1.: 
Purchase of Stock -.n -trade 
Sh.ated SeMce charges 
R~mbu,semen1 ot Expenses 

el!i!! Star F21!~atl2!! 
CSR Payment 

~ svstems and Sol!i!t1oos LLC 
Reimbunement of Expenses 

fi!:l!::!S: SJar ~limal£S,h 

Income: 
Sale cf Products 

Outst· nrlinn ba 

i!l!ltlliLLimiltll 
Balance due -Recelvablel(payable) 
Trade RecetVables 
Secumy 0ep()51t 

Ql!!t ~Jitr ,aim~!"h Lim ii~ 
Balance due .Receiv.iblel(payable) 
TratJe :lece,vables 

K .. v Man"""ffll'nt ,_,,.,.n,...1 nuoljnft 

Short term employee benefits 
Remuneration Paid I Payable (including 
commissloo) 
P1em Kalralh 
Yoge&h JO&hl 

SlH1ng fen to Non-Executive and Independent Director 
A.rvmdBali!IJI 
V1luam Nin.la 
Sun.arna Murthy 

Commission to Non-Exe-cutlve and Independent Director 
Atvind8al5Ji 
Vrli:ramN1rUa 
Sun.arnaMUfthy 

Loons lo related parties 

Blue Star Limited 

Begiming ot the year 
loans act,anced 
Lo•n repayment rece<ved 
lntere&I cha1ged 
lntefe&I ,eceived 

End or the year 

Blue Star Cl1matech 
Begimng of the yea, 
loaM adv.:ir,ced 
loan 1epayment reclafVed 
lntereet cha,~d 
lnte1est 1ece1Ved 
End of i1ie year 

Prem Kalllath 
Oes;,mng of the year 
loan Reco~·ery 
End ot lhe year 

Yogesh Joshi 
Beg:nning of the yea, 
Loar. Rtcovery 
End of the '" Note 1) Above al amount are base amount exoJdlng tun 

For the ear ended 
31st March 2024 31st March 2023 

113.30 604.79 
0.17 48.70 

341.78 327.24 

11.01 10.41 
132.00 132.00 

8.87 24.21 

20.04 

38.00 

24.58 
For the ear ended 

31st March. 2024 31st March. 2023 

10.61 199.49 
f2SS.9S) (2SS.95) 

6.88 

For the ear ended 
31st March 202~ 31st March 2023 

273.83 258.93 
74.80 73,65 

3.75 2.25 
4.50 0.75 
3.00 

9.42 4.12 
9.42 4.12 
9.42 

31st March. 2024 31st March. 2023 

12,000.00 16,000.00 
8,500.00 12,000.00 

(12,000.00) (16,000.00) 
810.58 839.94 

(810.58) {839.941 
8,500.00 12,000.00 

3,500.00 
3,500.00 3,500.00 

(3,500.00) 
272.34 39.24 

(272.34) {39.241 
3,500.00 3,500.00 

1J.56 14.89 
(1.33) (U3) 
12.23 tJ.56 

3.44 1 4.35 

(0.33),i (0.91) 
3.11 J,,'4 

2) Ju the b b~tes for g,aturty and leave enca&hmt!nt are provided on actuanat ba&is for the Company as • Y-.tde, 
t6e amount& ~rtaanng to the Directors are not induded above. 
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27, Oerivativc lnstrurt1ents and att.xhed foreign currency exposure 

The Company has a well-defined forex nsk management policy wtuch ensures proacuve and reg1AaI m::iflltoring and managing ol lorelgn exchange eYl)Osures. flnanaal nsks relating ltJ 
ch.angH In e• change rates are hedged by forwa,d ond oplloris contrac.ts. The hedging 1tralegy rs used Iowa,1d$ ma,nag;ng cur:ency l'luctuabon n.k and !he Comp.any does not use forei,n 
e~change forward and options contract for trading 01 speculative pur~oses. 
Forward and e:ptions conttact are fair valut=d at each 1epcxting date. The reslitant gain or loss of forward and option contract is recognised in the SIaIement of P,of« and LoH, 
Commodity nsk is mrbgated by enlenng ml.:, annual rate contracts vilh major su~crs v.hich is lactOl'ed in pricmg deasions. Tots awoach provides suffiaent mitigation against vol.-ttlity in 
commodty rates 

a) Oerlv;itlve Instruments: Forward contract outst.a nding as at Balance Sheet date 

There are no forward I option contract outslandng as on 31st march 2024. (31sl maIch 2023 N,I 

b) ParUcul.l,s of Un.hedged foreign Currency Exposure as at the B.alance Sheet d.ite 

Particulars ~ al 31st M■rch 2024 A£ at 31 st March 2023 
Foreign Cuuency Amount In r Lakhs Amount In r lakhs 

Foreign Currency Foreign Currency 
in lakh In Lekh 

Bank balancu 
AED 003 1.00 0.00 0.02 
EUR O.S8 52.00 0.99 88.63 
CAO 0,00 0.00 0.2S 
u~o 9.74 812.00 25.12 2 064.08 

Receivables 
AED 0.43 9.78 0.43 9.55 
CAD 0.07 4.17 0.04 2.M 
EUR 2.27 204.11 12.96 1159.36 
GOP 0.08 7.98 0.38 38,73 
JPY 22.22 12.24 22.22 13.69 
USO 14.30 1 192.47 24.26 1 99J.62 

Payables 
AED 0.49 11.04 0.49 10.68 
CAD 0.00 0.20 0.05 2.7S 
EUR 0.92 83.01 9.06 812.37 
GBP 0.77 80.79 0.05 -'.93 
JPY 113.05 62.26 88.26 54.37 
MYR 0.03 0.57 0.03 0.60 
USO 14.23 1187.16 28.40 2 333.87 
CH' 0.55 48.90 

• Reprsenll value leu than 50,000 
The un-hedged fOfeign currency exposures have been given In respect of currencies other than func;llonal cunency ol the company 

211. Financial Instruments 

As at 
Particulars March 31, 2024 

FVTPL Amortised Cost Total Total Fair FVTPL 
Carrying value 

vatue 

Financial Aucts 
lnvesIments (l'~fer note 6) 3,002.12 3,002.12 3,002.12 1,013.33 

Trarle receivables (reler note 7) 8,123.05 8,723.05 e.723.05 

Cash & bank balances (refer note 8) 5.487.69 5,487.69 5,487.69 

Loans (refer note 41) 12,062.55 12.062.55 12,062.55 

Other Manciel assets (refer note ◄b} 114,45 114.45 tt◄.45 

3.002.12 26,387.74 29,389.86 29,389.86 1,013.33 

Fin3nci.1! Li.1blfities 

Trade payables (refer note 11 ) 8 231.78 8,231.78 tl.231.78 

Other f•1ancial liat>;5ties (refer nole 121 257.97 2S7.97 257.97 

8,48'il.75 8.489.75 8.489.75 
-

As at 
March 31, 2023 

Amortised Cost Total Total F.iir 
Carrying value 

value 

1,013.33 1,013.33 

8.280.30 8.280.30 8,280.30 
2,727.82 2,727.82 2,727.82 

15,573.3-4 15,573.34 15,573.34 
127.77 127.77 127.77 

26,709.23 27,722.SG 27,722.56 

9,191.92 9,191.92 9,191.92 
2S5.14 255.14 255. t◄ 

9,447.06 9,U7.0G 9,4"7.06 

Management has assessed that Cnh and cash equivalents. Other balances 'Mth banks. Loans. Trade recer,,ables, Other financial assets. Trade payables. borrowing,,. lease hbrifbes and Olher financi11I •abllrlle, camed al amQftlsed ..,0$1 
appro:omate lhe1r carrying amounts largety due to the short-term matunbes ol these instrumenl5. 

29. Fair value hierarchy 

QuanUtatlvre disclosures fair value measurement heirarchv as at 31st March 2024 

P.artlculars 

Aneta tor which fair values are disGJosed: 
Investment property (reler nole 3t:) 
Assets me.asured al lair value 
Investment in mutual fund (refer note 6) 

~sets for which fair wh,es afe disclosed: 
Investment property (1efer note 3b) 
Assets measured at fair value 
Investment in 1r.:Jtual lund f1efe1 r.,te Iii 

There have been no transfers between le11el 1, Level 2 and Level 3 dunng the year 

Valuation technique and key inputs used to determine h1lr value: 

1. level• 2 
Mutual Fund . quoted price in the active markel 

2. levd - 3 
Investment Propeftv • aa~eo on valuabon re part of independent valuer 

Date ol Valuation Tol.1I 

M11rdl 31 . 2024 7,336.05 

March 31. 2024 3,002.12 

Mard, 31 . 2023 7,109.72 

Match 31 2023 1 013.33 

Unquoted prices Significant Significant Un 
In actiWi m.arkets observable: Inputs observable inputs 

(levrel1I {level 2) (level 3) 

7,336.05 

3.002.12 

7,109.72 

1 013.33 
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies 

The Company's principal financial l iabilities comprise of short tenured borrowings, trade and other payables and financial guarantee contracts. Most of these liabilities 

relate lo financing Company's working capital cyde. The Company has trade and other receivables, loans and advances that arise directly from its operations. The 

Company also enters into hedging transactions to cover foreign exchange exposure risk. 

The Company is accordingly exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 

The Company's senior management oversees management of these risks. The senior professionals working to manage the financial risks and the appropriate financial 

risk governance framework for the Company are accountable to the Board of Directors. This process provides assurance that the Company's financial risk-taking 

activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with Company's policies and 

overall risk appetite. All foreign currency hedging activities for risk managemenl purposes are carried oul by a specialist treasury team thal have the appropriate skills, 

experience and supervision. In add:tion, independent views from bankers and currency market experts are obtained periodically to validate risk mitigation decisions. It is 

the Company's policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes shall be undertaken. 

The Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these 1isks which are summarised below: 

Market risk 

Mark'3t risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial i11strument 'MIi fluctuate because of changes in ma1ket prices. Market prices comprise currency 

rate risk anc! interest rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk indude loans and borrowings. deposits. advances and derivative financial instruments. 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, induding the effects of changes in foreign currency e);.change rates and interest rate movement. 

Foreign currency risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument \viii fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company 

transacts business in local currency and in foreign currency, primarily US Dollars. The Company has foreign currency trade payables and receivables and is therefore, 

exposed to foreign exchange risk. The Company may use forward contracts or foreign exchange options towards hedging risk resulting from changes and fluctuations in 

foreign currency exchange rate. These foreign exchange contracts, carried at fair value, may have varying maturities varying depending upcn the primary host contract 

requirement and risk management strategy of the company. 

Foreign currency sensitivity 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity in the USO, Euro and other currencies to the functional currency of the Company, with all other variables held constant 

The impact on the Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities induding foreign currency derivatives. 

Effect on profit before tax 
Change in currency 

Particulars 
exchange rate For the Year For the Year 

Ended March 31, Ended March 31, 
2024 2023 

US Dollars +5% 9.80 86.19 
-5% (9.80) (86.19) 

Euro +5% 1.93 21.78 
-5% (1.93) (21.78) 

CAD +5% 0.07 
-5% (0.07) 

JPY +5% (90.83) 2.03 
-5% 90.83 (2.03) 

AED +5% (0.02) 0.07 
-5% 0.02 (0.07) 

MYR +5% (0.03) 0.03 
-5% 0.03 (0.03) 

CHF +5% 2.45 
-5% (2.45) 

GBP +5% (0.69) 1.69 
-5% 0.69 (1,691 
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Credit r isk 

Credit risk is lhe nsk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading lo a financial loss. The company is 
exposed to credit risk from its operating aclivities. primarily trade receivables and from its financing activities, induding deposils with banks, foreign exchange 
transactions and other financial instruments. 

1. Trade receivables 
Cuslomer credil risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and controls relating to customer credit risk 
management. Trade receivables are norrinterest bearing and are generally on credit term in line with respective industry norms. Outstanding customer receivables are 
regutarty monitored. The Company has no concentration of credit risk as the customer base Is widely distributed both economically and geographically. (refer note 6 for 
detaled ageing) 

2. Financial instruments and cash deposits 
Credit risk from balances l.Nith banks and mutual funds is managed by Company's treasury In accordance with the Board approved policy. Investments of surplus funds. 
temporarily, are made only w,th approved counlerparties, mainly bank fixed deposits and mutual funds, who meet the minimum threshold requirements under the 

counterparty risk assessment process. 

Liquidity risk 
Liquidity nsk is the risk that the company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligalions without incurring unacceptable losses. The 

Company's ob1ect1ve is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet it cash and collateral requirements. The Company dosely monitors its liquidity position 

and deploys a robust cash management system. II maintains adequate sources of financing including loans. debt, and overdraft from both domestic and intemetional 

banks at an optimised cost. It also enjoys strong access to domestic and international capital markets across various debt and hybrid insuuments 

The table below summarise the maturity prof~e of the company's financial liabilities based on contractual und1scounted payments: 
f Lakhs 

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 
Less than 1 year I More than 1 yearl Total Lass than 1 year I More than 1 year I Total 

Trade Payables 8.231:781 
257:911 

8,231.78 9,191:921 . I 9.191.92 
Other financial liabilities 257.97 255.14 255.14 

31. Capital management 
Capital 11lCludes equity attributable to the equily holders of the company and net debt. 
Primary objective of Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintarns an optimum financing structure and healthy returns in order to support its business and 
maximize shareholder value. 
The Company manages 1ts capital structure and makes adjustments. in light of lhe changes in economic conditions or business requirements. 

32, Disclosure u/s 186(4) of the companies Act, 2013 

During the year the Company has placed Inter Corporate Deposits (ICD) with holding company Blue Siar Limited & fellow subsidiary company Blue star Climalech Lid 

aggregating to Rs 8,500 Lakh and Rs 3,500 Lakh for financing the working capital requirments and capex requ1nnents of the business respectively 

Page 39 of 42 



Blue Stu Englneertno & Elecironits limiled 
CIN No : U70ZOOMH2010PLC204'12 
Notes lo Financial St1tem, nts: for 1he yea, ended ltst March 2024 

33 Contingent Uabilitlu 

Futuu cash outfkl.ws IA respect of mauers considered d1sPl,lted are determinabk onty on 1ece1pl ol ,udgmen1s I dec1s10M pendLnQ at vanous forumslauthonties. T/'le management does no1 e:roect these dittms IQ 
su«eed and ac.c.on:l•,tgly, no C)f0111sion Jar the contingent lfabltlry has bun reco,gnued In the fv,and al statements. 

I 

The Company's pending ffugalions compnse of proceedings pending tM\h tu auth0tll1es The Company hu reviewed an •spending lrtiga!Jons ar.d proceedings ano hu adequalely proVtde<I lor v.1'!ere provis,on!> 
are requ 11ed amt (SIScioseo contnoem t11b~•t1es wt\e,e aPOltc,aOle. In ics f111ano1I statements. The Company does nol eYoect !he ou1come or tnese PfOCeed111gs 10 have a malenal adve,se effect on lhe f1nancial 
slatemems 

P L.1kh1 
Particulus lhl PA.arch, 2024 l1Sl March. 2023 

C1a11ns ana1ns1 1he compuy nOI •ditno'MedQed as deb!!. 125 00 
VAT mauers 122.16 122.1& 
GST mailers 23.29 
Income lax mane~ 1 786.00 ,.1u.oo 

!Total l,OU.◄5 1,,oa.11 

34 Comm11mcnls 

Particulars 
Est,rnated amount of con1,acts remaining 10 be u :eculed en UPtlal acco!.ffll 
ar.d nol JlfOvtded ror (n~ 01 advances). 

ltuUuch 202' lht March, 2023 

90,50 

JS DuriftV 1he year, !he Compan, hH 1ecervtd no1lee lrom Stamp O\J1y CoUec;to, Office tor non paynll'inl of stamp dut·, amounurn., to , 954 lakhs for ws,ness oorcnue transactron of D S Gupta Cons.ln.icllon Dnva!e 

L,rn.ited c1med ou1 during FY 2010-11. On me basis orleqal oi)ink>n obtained the Comp.an)' has mad~ aJ:>olica11on for Amnesty scJ'leme m lhe month or February 2024 ind provided t 205 .. lr.hs. 

As per lenns lalO dOVrm n lhe sad scheme Buis Scheme apptoved by the Honorable High Cour1 in 2010 - 11 such payment ol stamp d\JI)' 1~ aoiusled 1n Secun11u o,em,um acccunl In -,cco,dance .,.,.th the 

Sc.neme 01 Arr.anoement ber....·een Blue Siar Elect,o Mechanical Limited (lhe Compan/1 and 11's Shareholders A Credslon; duty •pproved b1 the Hoo ble Higri Court o'Judica11J1e at Bomba)' Vlde 11.s order oatel1 

March 2011 

l6 Seg,nen1 i nformalion : The Company 1s m•lflt1 mto d1stnbution 1nC1 mamtenance 01 imported l)r0less1onal elec.tronic.s and 111dust11al systems. Accordingly, there are no sepa,ate repo,table u gm,nts as oer Ind 
.45 • 105 on 'Operahng Segment' and no lurthtN" dlsdosuru ate requwed. 

J7 Olselosure In connec1lon witn nvenue lrom con1r1c1s with customus 
(a) Disa99reg1llon of revenue 

The table below p«:sen1s Oiuggregetti1 revenues r,om coritracts wAn cos1on1e1s 11)1' the yea, tn<Jed MafU'I ll 202◄ b)' olfenngs and c0n11act-type. The Company bellevl'l that ltus ois.11gg1eoatl0fl btsl deJ)IC1S Mw 
!Pit n11u,e, amount, 1trni09 and uncertainly of revenues and cash nows ate affected by induslry, m:u'lr;et ;md oth•r econ0ffl1c tac.tors· 

. '·""· 
Yur tnded lht N arch, 2024. 

Revenue by segment type Over lime At a point In 11m1t 

Professional electre>ntc.S and ,nc!ustt,,1 sys1ems S,30'-15 32.510.11 
Tolal 5,304.15 31,110.11 

(bl Reconc1l/11ion or conuacttd pnce with th• revenue 1ecogni21d In prolil or lou 

Sale of products al lr.ansaellon pnce 
Less: R~uclion IOW8111S vari1ble consider•rion components 
Rennue 1ecoon1st<:l on sale Of produts 

The,e are no variaDle consideration ,n contract pnce ol P'OJect revenue. 

fc) Revenue reconcilialion for lhe year 

Particulars 
Open1no tulance• conuact assets (net or 1mpam,ent) 
Opening balance conllact 1t1bi1111es• 
Revenua 1ecognised dunng the year 
Len: Proareu bdlna durino the ..-ear 
Closfnn tHl1nce 
Closing b!ttenui U>nl!sct assets (fie! 01 1mpa1rmen!J 
Clos1110 balance comract liebtl.l:,u 1ndud,no income reurved rn advance 
"The Comoanv hu recoonised nv1nu1 out ol o"'enin" conuact habi lilies 

3tsl Much, 2024 list Much, 2023 
31 ,264.91 21369 3S 

31.254.91 211,359.35 

T0111 

38,11'.~ 
31,114.25 

Vur cndtd 31st Much, 2023 : 
I 

Over lime Al a point In time Total 
I 

5.188 9 1 29.803.32 lA.992237 
5,111.91 2t IOl.37 l◄,9U,2J 

r L.akhs 
Jhl March, 202◄ Jls1 Ma,ch, 2023 

500.711 262.U 
(6.093.00) (S,OS3.98) 
5,l0◄ . 15 S., 11111.91 

r4,221.77 l S185.91 
4 501.U 4 711.1 ◄ 

429.05 500.79 
{ 4 93-9.911 15.093.00 
l 73$.U 15 OSJ.U' 



Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2024 

38. Analytical Ratio -

Particulars Definition 
Current ratio Current assets/ Current liabilities 
RehJrn on Equity Ratio Net profit ofter tax I average shareholders equity X 100 
Inventory turnover Ratio(No.of days) Cost of goods sold for the year I average inventory for the year 

Trade receivables turnover ratio (~Jo. of Revenue from operation for the year / average debtors for the year 
days) 
Trade payables turnover r;,tio (No.of days) Cost of goods sold for the year /average creditors for the year 
Net capital turnover ratio (In times) R~venue from operation I working capital 
Net profit ratio PrcfiV(Loss) for the year/ Total Revenue from operation X 100 
Return on capital employed (Profit before tax+ finance charge) / capital employed 
Return on investment 
Return on mutual fund Income from investment / cost of investment X 100 
Return on Fixed deoosit Income from investment I cost of investment X 100 
Note : 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 % Variance 
2.16 1.93 12% 
19% 20% -5% 

5.87 8.60 -32% 

4.48 5.22 -14% 

3.34 3.43 -3% 
1.84 1.96 -6% 
12% 12% 6% 
24% 25% -5% 

3% 4% -6% 
6% 1% 432% 

1.) Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR), Debt-Equity ratio are not applicable due to no long term loan repayment made during the year & no outstanding loan as on 31st march 2024 
2.) Schedule Ill require explanation where the change in ratio is more than 25% as comapred to the preceding year. Accordingly explanation is given only for the said ratio. 

~~ h,_~-: "'..,~, .... , <t ~<~ 
ff :__ ~ 

')~ ·~' ·.::Y 

~ 
.) ./' .'; ~ ,,':i<-',,? 
'¾{~-

r...-~ 

Reason for variance 
Below threshold of 25% 
Below threshold of 25% 
Holding period of service inventory has increased 

Below threshold of 25% 

Below threshold of 25% 
Below threshold of 25% 
Below threshold of 25% 
Below threshold of 25% 

Below threshold of 25% 
Due to investment made in current vear 
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39. Leases 
Operating lease : company as a lessee 
The Company has entered into operating lease agreements for storage locations . Lease rental expenses debited to Statement of Profit & Loss under 
rent charges ~ 307.44 Lakhs (31st March 2023: ~ 251.40 Lakhs). 

Operating lease : company as a lessor 
The Company has entered into operating lease agreements . . Lease rental income credited to Statement of Profit and Loss is t 341.78 Lakhs (31st 
March 2023 : t 391.59 Lakl1s). 

40. Code on social security 
The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('the Code') received presidential assent on September 28, 2020. However, the date on which the Code '-'111 come 
into effect has not yet been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code on its books of account in the period(s) in which the provisions of 
the Code becomes effective 

41 . Other statutory information 
(i) The company neither holds any benami property nor any proceedings have been initiated or pending against the copmpany for holding benami 

property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder. 

(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off under companies act 2013 or company act 1956. 

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with registrar of companies beyond the statutory period, 

(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year. 

(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the 

understanding that the intermediary shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate 

beneficiaries) or 

(b) prov:de any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries 

(vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding (whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (ultimate 

beneficiaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the likE' on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries, 

(vii) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as 

income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as.search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the 

income Tax Act, 1961. 

(viii) The Company has . complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 

(ix) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year 

42. Previous Year Comparatives 
Corresponding figures for the immediately preceding period are disclosed in the financial statements. Previous years' figures have been recompanyed 
where necessary to confirm to this year's classification. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Blue Star Engineering & Electronics Limited 

~)~ ~-z--r 
Vir S Advani 
Chaimian 
Din: 01571278 

~ -~ -~m Kalhath 
~EO & Director 

Din: 07249861 

Place : Mumbai 
Date: April 23, 2024 

Nikhil Sohoni 
Director 
Din: 06852639 

'\?~ 
Yogesh Joshi 

CFO & Company Secretary 
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